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May 7, 2014

NOTICE TO STOCKHOLDERS:
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.
Felipe L. Gozon
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya
Artemio V. Panganiban
Manuel P. Quiogue
Felipe S. Yalong

Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Holdings, Inc. will be
held on May 30, 2014 (Friday) at 10:00 a.m. at Aubergine Restaurant Patisserie 32™ and 5"
Building, 5™ Avenue cor. 32™ Street, Bonifacio Global Taguig, City to consider, discuss or vote
on the following

1. Callto order

2. Certification and Notice of Quorum

3. Approvai of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on May 31, 2013.

4. Report of the President

5. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

6.  Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation to state the specific address of the
Corporation’s principal office pursuant to SEC MC No. 8, Series of 2014

7. Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

8.  Election of the External Auditor

9.  Declaration of Cash Dividends

10.  Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting

1. Adjournment

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked and on
file with, or is submitted to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V. De la Costa
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City.

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 30, 2014 shall be entitied to
vote,

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the Annual
Stockholders’ Mesting. Thank you.

For the Board of Directors:

NNA-TERESA M. GOZON ABROGAR
Corporate Secretary



We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unable to attend the meeting but would
like o be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before May 29, 2013. You may
deliver the proxy or send it in advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of proxies
shall be held on May 29, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. at the GMA Network Center.

PROXY

I’'We hereby name and appoint , or in his/her absence, the Chairman
of the meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Meetin% of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Aubergine Restaurant Patisserie 32™ and 5" Building, 5" Avenue cor. 32™ Street,
Bonifacio Global Taguig, City, on Friday, May 29, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement
or adjournment thereof.

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held



10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-iS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Check the appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement

[ v ]Definitive Inforrﬁation Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in Its charter; GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHILIPPINES
SEC ldentification Number CS200602356

BIR Tax Identification Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office Postal Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY '

Registrant's telephone number, including area code (632) 9827777

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

DATE : May 30, 2014
TIME 10:00 a.m.
PLACE: Aubergine Restaurant Patisserie 32" and 5™ Building, 5" Avenue

cor, 32™ Street, Bonifacio Global Taguig, City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders

May 9, 2014

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE
Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE
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12, Securities registered pursuant fo Sec’fiéns 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to

corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class ‘ Number of Shares of Common Stock
Qutstanding and Amount of Debt
Qutstanding

Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs”) 857,509,800

12. Are any or all of registrant’s securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This Information Statement dated May 7, 2014, is being furnished to the stockholders of record
of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 30, 2014 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A, GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

{a) State the date, time and place of the mesting

Date May 30, 2014
Time : 10:00 a.m.
Place: Aubergine Restaurant Patisserle 32 and 6" Building, 5" Avenue cor.

32" Street, Bonifacio Global Taguig, City

(b) Approximate date on which copies of the information statement are first to be sent to the
security holders:

May 9, 2014



ltem 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1} in case any
amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and
restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, lease,
exchange, transfer, mortgage or other disposition of ail or substantially all of the corporate
property or assets; (3) in case of merger or consolidation; {4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds in another corporation or business or for any purpose other than the primary
purpose; and (5) extension or shortening of the term of corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in
cases where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing corporate actions proposed in a meeting by making written demand on ths
corporation for the payment of the fair value of his/its shares within 30 days after the date on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such period shall be deemed a
waiver of such right. If the proposed action is implemented, the corporation shall paytoa
stockholder surrendering hisfits stock certificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares,
failing which, hisfits appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon
payment of the purchase price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares {o the

corporation. :

From the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate
action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such
shares, including voling and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the value of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights
shall be restored.

None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under Title X of the Corporation Code of the
Fhilippines.

ltern 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matler to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is
involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

(b) No Director has informed the Company of his opposition to any matter to he acted upon.



B. CONTROL AND COVPENSATION INFORMATION

Itemn 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) GMA Holdings, Inc. (“the Company’) has 10,000 common shares subscribed and
outstanding as of March 31, 2014. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each commoen share held as of the established record date.

(b) All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on Apfii 30, 2014 are entitled to
notice of and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

(c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares
for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit; provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be

alected.

{d) The following are the information on security ewnership of certain record and beneficial
owners and management:
Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners as of March 31, 2014

As of March 31, 2014, the following persons owned at least 5% of the Company's
outstanding common shares:

Title of Name, Address of Name of Citizenship No. of | Percentage
class Record Owner and | Beneficial Owner Shares of Class
Relationship with | and Relationship Held
Company with Record
Owner
Common | Felipe L. Gozon The Record owner Filipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, | is the Beneficial
Cne McKinley Place, Owner

New Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio,

Taguig City

Common | Gilberto R. Duavit, dr. | The Record owner Filipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 3 5D Tower One, is the Beneficial
One McKinley Place, Owner

New Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio,

Taguig City

Common | Joel Marcelo G. The Record owner Filipino 3,330 33.30
Jimenez is the Beneficial
Unit 5 6D Tower One, Owner

One McKinley Place,




New Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City

Total 9,990 99.90

Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez are significant
stockholders of the Campany. '
Security Ownership of Management as of March 31, 2014:

As of March 31, 2014, the Company's directors and senior officers owned an aggregate
of 96,996 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 99.96% of the Company’'s

issued and outstanding common capital stock.

Titie of Class Name of Amount and Citizenship Percentage
Beneficial Owner Mature of of Class
Beneficial
Ownership
Commeon Felipe L. Gozon Direct Filipino 33.30 |
3,330
Common Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Direct Filiping 33.30
3,330
Common Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330 _
Common Artemio V. Panganiban Direct Filipino .04
4
Common Jaime C, Laya Direct Filipino .01
1
Common Felipe S. Yalong Direct Filipino .01
1
Total 99,996 99.96 |.

Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is not aware of any person halding more than 5% of shares under a
vating trust or similar arrangement.

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangement which may have resulted in a change in '
control of the Company during the period covered by this report.




Foreign Equity

The Company's equity {consisting of common shares) are wholly-owned by Filipinos.
While the PDRs issued by the Company may be owned by any person regardiess of
citizenship or nationality, the exercise of which is subject to the nationality restriction
under the Philippine Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass media
companies. As a result, the Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. common shares)
resulting from an exercise of the PDRs may only be issued to Philippine citizens or -
corporations, cooperatives or associations wholly owned and managed by Philippine
citizens. Although holders of PDRs will enjoy economic rights upon occurrence of certain
events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they will not have any voting rights in
respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until exercise of the PDR, be
retained and exercised by GHI or the Company. Pending exercise of the PDRs, the
Shares deliverable on exercise of the PDRs shall be owned by and registered in the
name of the Issuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged
by the Issuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held fo the order and for the benefit of the
Molders as security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant to
the Pledge. Until an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying the
relevant PDR, will retain and exercise such voting rights relating to such Shares.

ltem 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2014-2015):

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Jaime C. Laya {Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban (Independent Director)

All the nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with the nominated independent
directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

The Company's By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shall be
submitted in writing to the Nomination Committee before the date of the regular annual meeting
of the stockholders. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the qualifications of the
nominees and approved the final fist of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya



Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom are independent. The directors have a term of one year
and are elected annually at the Company's stockholders meeting. A director who Is elected to
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of March 31,
2014, the Company's Board of Directors and Senior Management were composed of the
following:

Board of Directors Senior Management
Year Year
Directors and Senior . " Position " Position
. Age

Management Nationality Position was Position was g

Assumed Assumed
Felips L. Gozon Fittpina Sf‘a’rmam 2007 1 NIA NIA 74

irector
Gilberto R._Duavit, Jr, Fillping Director 2007 President/Chisf Execuilve Officar 2007 50
Joel Marcelo G, Jimenez Fitfpino Director 2007 NIA MN/A 50
' Enlef Financial Oficer/Chist
Felipe S. Yalong Filipino Corporate Treasurer 2007 Operating Officer 2012 57
Artemio V. Panganiban Filipino Independent Director 2009 N/A NVA 77
Jaime C. Laya Filipino Independant Director 2008 MA NIA 75
Renalda P, Mastril Filipine | N/A wa | Semptroller/Chief Accounting 2007 48
Officer

Roberto O, Paral Filipino A NA Vice-President! Compliance Officer 2013 58
Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar Filipfna Corporate Secretary 2007 NIA NIA 42

Atty. Felipe L. Gozon

Filipino, 74 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of
GMA Network, Inc.

Atty Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila.
Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is also Chairman and CEO of GMA Marketing and
Productions, Inc. and GMA New Media, Inc.; Chairman and President of FLG Management and
Development Corp.; Chairman of Alta Productions Group, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and
Productions, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corp., Philippine Entertainment Portal,
Inc., and RGMA Network, Inc.; Vice Chairman of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank;
Director of, among other companies, Gozon Development Corp., Justitia Realty and
Management Corp., Antipolo Agri-Business and LLand Development Corp., Capitalex Holdings,
Inc., BGE Holdings, Inc., Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Chamber of
Commerce of the Philippine Islands and President of Lex Realty, Inc. He serves as Chairman
of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation,
Inc., and The Potter and Clay Christian School Foundation, Inc.; Chairman and President of
Gozon Foundation; and Trustee of Bantayog ng mga Bayani Foundation. Gozon is also an
Advisory Board Member of the Asian Television Awards.




Atty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievement in law, medla, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (1991}, Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1993), CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur —
Philippines (2004) by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005}, Pecple of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005), Outstanding Manilan Award in the field of Social
Responsibility and Broadcasting given by the City Government of Manila (2011), Quezon City
Gawad Parangal Most Outstanding Citizen for 2011 given by the City Government of Quezon
(2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011), Lifetime Achievement
Award given by the UP Alumni Assoclation (2012), Certificate of Recognition given by the Civil
Aeronautics Board (2012), Personality of the Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
International Makati {2013), Outstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UP Chapter
(International Honor Society) (2013) and Visionary Management CEO Award given by BizNews
Asia (2013). He is also listed among Biz News Asia's Power 100 (2003 to 2010).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (among
the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admitied to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Fitipino, 50 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of GMA Network, Inc. He
has been a Director of the Company since 1999 and is currently the Chairman of the Network’s
Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the Chairman of the Board of GMA
Network Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and a member of the Board of GMA Marketing
and Productions, Inc. He also serves as President and CEO of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios,
Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film Experts, Inc., and Dual Management and
Investments, Inc. He is the President and a Director of Group Management and Development,
Inc.; President and Director of MediaMerge Corp., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions,
Inc.; Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc., Alta Productions Group, Inc.,
Optima Digital, Inc., and Monte-Aire Realty and Development Corp. He also serves as the
President and a Trustee of GMA Kapusc Foundation, Inc., President of Guronasyon
Foundation, Inc. and is a Trustee of the HERO Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor’s Degres in Philosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel G. Jimenez

Filipino, 50 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2002. He is currently the
Chief Executive Officer of Alta Productions, Inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA
New Media, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Worldwide, Inc., besides also being a member of
the Board of Directors of Malayan Savings and Morigage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, Inc.
He is also a Director of Nuvoland Philippines, a real-estate development company. He is a
Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

He was educated in Los Angeles, California where he obtained a Bachelor's Degree in

Business Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He also obtained a Master's
Degree in Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

10



Felipe S. Yalong

Filipino, 57 years old, is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of GMA
Network, Inc. He is also the Head of the Corporate Services Group of the Network. He has
been a Director of the Company since 2002, Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he also serves as
Director and Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Network
Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., Majalco Finance and Investments, inc., and GMA
Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, Inc., MediaMerge
Corp.; Executive Vice President of RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.; and Corporate
Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc. ' '

Yalong was named CFO of the Year by ING FINEX in 2013.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration Major in Accounting from
the Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development
Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Dr. Jaime C. Laya

Filipino, 75 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007. He
is the Chairman and President of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank), Director of Ayala
Land, Inc., Philippine AXA Life Insurance Company, Inc., Philippine Ratings Services
Corporation, and Bankers Association of the Philippines. He also serves as Chairman of Don
Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc. and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of St.
Paul University - Quezon City, Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum of
Manila, Yuchengco Museum, Fundacién Santiage, Inc., Ayala Foundation, Inc., and other
foundations. He writes a weekly column for the Manila Bulletin.

He was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984;
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. In 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. {Certified Public
Accountants and Management Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
International; he served as the firm's Chairman untii his retirement in 2004,

He earned his BSBA, magna cum laude, University of the Philippines, 1957; M.S. in Industrial:
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1960; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban (ret.)

Filipino, 77 years old, has been an Independent Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007. In
1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme Court and in 2005, he was appointed Chief
Justice of the Philippines - a position he held until December 2006. At present, he is also an
Independent Director of these listed firms: First Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific
Investments Corp., Manila Electric Company, Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc.,
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Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co., Petron Corporation, Bank of the Philippine Islands,
_Asian Terminals, and a regular Director of Jollibee Foods Corporation. He is also a Senior
Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Chairman, Board of Advisers of Metrobank Foundation,
Chairman of the Board of the Foundation for Liberty and: Prosperity, President of the Manila
Cathedral Basilica Foundation, Chairman Emeritus of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center,
Inc., and Member, Advisory Board of the World Bank {Philippines) and of the Asian Institute of
Management Corporate Governance Council. He also is.a column writer of The Philippine Daily
Inquirer.

Upon his retirement, he was unanimousiy conferred a Plaque of Acclamation by the Associate
Justices of the Supreme Court as the “Renalssance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award
of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic
leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar
groups, religious movements and other non-government organizations, both local and
international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and “Most Outstanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various universities.

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar

Filipino, 42 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2000. Atty. Anna Teresa
G. Abrogar graduated valedictorian from grade school and high school at Colegio San Agustin.
She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila University and
cbtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines where she
graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of Laws from Harvard
University.

She is a junior partner in Belo Gozon Eima Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associate
Professor in the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught taxation.

She is currently Programming Consultant to the Chairman/CEO of GMA Network, Inc. and the
President of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. She is a trustee of GMA Kapuso
Foundation.

Ronaldo P. Mastrili

Filipino, 48 years old, is the Senior Vice President of GMA Network Inc.’s Finance and [CT
departments. He obtained a Bachelor of Science in Business and Economics degree, major in
Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master in Business Administration -
Program from the same university and completed the Executive Development Program of the
Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant with expertise in the fields
of accounting, auditing, finance, taxation and general management. He was formerly the
Assistant Vice President of Controllership of ABS-CBN and also served as its Group Internai
Auditor before joining GMA Network in March 2001. He also worked with SGV and Co. in the
early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently holds key positions in GMA Subsidiaries
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namely: Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA Holdings, Treasurer of Alta
Productions, Director of Script2010, and Comptroller of GMA Films, GMA Kapusc Foundation
and GMA Worldwide. :

Atty. Roberto O. Parel

Fllipino, 58 years old, has been the Corporate Secretary of the GMA Network, Inc. since 1993.
He is a Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila. His practice
areas include labor relations, natural resources and intellectual property. He is a Director of
Time-Life International Philippines, Capitalex Holdings Philippines, Ipilan Nickel Corporation,
Nickel Laterite Resources, Inc., Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nickel Corporation, Ulugan
Resources Holdings, Inc., Nicksline Resources Holdings, Inc., TMM Management Inc., and
Assetvalues Holding Company, Inc.; Director and Corporate Treasurer of Selenga Mining
Corporation; Corporate Secretary of Alta Productions Group, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., Citynet
Network Marketing and Productions, Ine., GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., and Hinoba Holdings

{(Philippines), Inc.

He graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Philosophy and a Bachelor of Laws degree. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. Atty.
Parel further pursued legal studies through short programs at the Center of American and
International Law and the Southwestern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he attended
a training program on Industrial Property Rights held by the Japan Institute of Invention and
Innovation and the Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokyo, Japan.

Significant Employees

Although the Company will continue to rely on the individual and collective contributions of their
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particular employee.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon'’s sister,
Carolina L. Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez.

Invelvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company's knowledge, during the past five years and up to the date of this
Information Statement, there has been no occurrence of any of the following events which are
material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company:

+ Any filing of an insolvency or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which

such person was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the
insolvency or within two years prior to that time;
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e Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal procesding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or fore|gn of any such person, excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses;

s Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business,
securities, commodities, or banking activities; and

» Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign bedy, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,
for violation of a securities or commodities law.

Resignation of Directors

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the
date of the initial organization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on

matters refating to the Company’s operations, policies and practices.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Company engaged as its legal counsel Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion- .
& Lucila (“BGEPAL”) where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Partner. Alty. Gozon is the
Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company. The Company and BGEPAL are
currently negotiating the fees in relation to the services provided, ensuring that the same is
done on an arm'’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company's Initial
Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remitted to these Seliing Shareholders.
Please see Note 10 of the Company’s Financial Statements.

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material transactions during the past two
years, nor is any material transaction presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the
registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms
of material transactions that may not be availed from other, more clearly independent parties on
an arm’s length basis.

ltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following sets forth the summary of the Company’s compensation to its executive officers:
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Name and Position
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe S. Yalong
Ronaldo P. Mastrili

CEOQO and the highest

President and Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Officer
Chief Accounting Officer/ Comptroller

Year Salaries Bonuses Other Total
{in {in Income (in
thousands) thousands) thousands)

compensated officers named 2011 - ’ - - -
above ,
2012 - - -
2013 - - - -
2014
(estimate)
Aggregate compensation paid 2011 -
10 all officers and directors as 5012 - - -
a group unnamed
2013 - - - -
2014 } ) _
{estimate)

No director or officer receives or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides that each director is entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate an-amount of not more than 10% of the net
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the
stockholders.

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing
directors and officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-controf Arrangements

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are elected {o
their respective positions on a yearly basis. The Company has no compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect to any executive officer that would result from the resignation,
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer's employment.
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ltem 7.

(a)

()

()

(d)

ttem 8.

Independent Public Accountants

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (“SGV & Co.”) has acted as the Company's external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 31, 2013.

Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed
fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, They will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

The Company became publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,
2007. Pursuant to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (iv), the Company has engaged Ms. Clairma
T. Mangangey, partner of SGV & Co., to sign the Company’s 2013 audited financial

statements.
Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

The Company has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any
subsequent interim period.

SGV & Co. professional fees billed for its year-end financial audit of the Company
covering the years 2013, 2012 and 2011 amounted to P75 thousand per year. These
included the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No
other fees of any nature were paid.

The Company's Audit Committee was formed in 2008. The Audit Committee reviews the
fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same to.the Board of
Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Artemio V. Panganiban
Felipe S. Yalong

Compensation Plans

No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.
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C.ISSUANGCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ltem 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action shall be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.

Itemn 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities
No action shall be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the
Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the
Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.
item 11. Financial and Other Information
In connection with Item 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities
and Regulation Code:

a. Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2013 and 2012;

b. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or plan of operation; and

. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of

securities and dividends paid out, and corporate governance

ltem 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters
No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and similar
matters.
item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is fo be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.
ltem 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account
of the Company.
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D. OTHER MATTERS

item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

a. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ending December 31, 2013.

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockhelders’ Meeting held on May 31, 2013.
The salient matters are summarized as follows:

{1} Approval of the Minutes of the Stockho]ders Meeting held on May 25, 2012
(2) Report of the President

(3) Ratification of Acts of the Board of Direclors for the Previous Year

(4) Election of Directors, including the Iindependent Directors

(5) Election of the External Auditor

c. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

All acts and resolutions of the Beard of Directors and Management for
the period covering May 31, 2013 fo May 30, 2014 adopted in the
ordinary course of business involving
Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;
Appointment of signatories,
Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last June 13,
2013
Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting
Approval of the Financial Statements

v

v

\'4

A

v

ltem 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters to be submitted in the meeting will require the vote of the security holders.

ftem 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

Upon approval of the stockholders, the Articles of Incorporation of the Company will be further
amended to state the specific address of the Company’s principal office pursuant to SEC MC
No. 6, Series of 2014.

ftem 18. Other Proposed Action

(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers:

0 Declaration of Cash Dividends of P0.25 per share by GMA Network Inc.
on April 24, 2013 to PDR Holders. The record date for the PDR holders
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who were entitled to receive the cash amounts was on April 17, 2013
(Wednesday) [the same record date for GMA Network, Inc.
stockholders] and the cash amounts were distributed to the PDR
holders on May 15, 2013 (Wednesday).

(i) All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering May 31, 2013 to May 30, 2014 adopted in the
ordinary course of business involving
Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;
Appointment of signatories;
Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last June 13,
2013
Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’
Mesting
Approval of the Financial Statements

v

v

v

v

\'

(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year '

{c) Election of the External Auditor

ltem 19. Voting Procedures

(2) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
of the Company’s common stock present and/or represented and entitled to vote. However,
under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-
cumulative, except as to the election of directors.

(b) Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5} nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as
he shall see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to be elected.

If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot. If there are only
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands.

The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by secret ballot. The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of
the meeting shall likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or
otherwise in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not
received any information that an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to
be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.
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Upon written request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholder with a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a
copy of the SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed to the following:

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City

Attention: Ronaldo P. Mastrili
Chief Accounting Officer
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SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the
information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the

Gity of Makation MAY § 7 2014

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
By:

" ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON ABROGAR
Corporate Secretary
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT

i. Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a
holding Company, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire own, hold,
use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited to stocks, bonds and debentures. The Company
has no subsidiaries. :

The Philippine Deposit Receipts (‘PDRs”) issued by the Company wére listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE"} on July 30, 2007.

GHI does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the
PDRs relating to the GMA Network, Inc. common shares (“Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under the PDRs and the
acquisition and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRSs, which includes
maintaining the listing with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio Glebal City, Fort Benifacio, Taguig City.

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees

The Company had no full-time employees as of March 31; 2013 and does not anticipate in
hiring any employees within the next 12 months. No labor unions are present within the
Company.

Il Properties

The Company does not own any real property. The Company does not lease any real property
and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months.

1. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any legal proceeding.
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v. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Maiters

Market Information

The Company first offered PDRs relating to GMA Network, inc. Common Shares on July 30,
2007. These PDRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date.

Stock Prices GMAP
Period in 2013 Highest Closing Lowest Closing

1Q 10.18 9.50
2 10.20 8.00
3 - _8.99 .28
4Q _8.35 .10

The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading date, May 8, 2014, was
PhP 7.66. : '

Holders

The total number of shareholders as of March 31, 2014 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of March 31, 2014 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. All the common shareholders of

are listed hersunder:

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Subscribed Percentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon 3,330 33.30
Gilberto R, Duavit, Jr. 3,330 33.30
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez 3,330 33.30
Artemic V. Panganiban _ 4 .04
Manuel P. Quiogue 4 .04
Jaime C. Laya 1 01
Felipe S. Yalong 1 01

Total 10,000 100.00

Dividend Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable
at such times and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
shall determine. The declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the
Company shall be declared.
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In 2012, the Company declared P259 per share cash dividends amounting to P2.59 million to all
stockholders of record as at May 25, 2012. This was paid on June 8, 2012,

The company has no dividend declaration in 2011.

In 2010, the Company declared P300 per share cash dividénds amounting to P3 million to all
stockholders of record as at May 29, 2010. This was paid on June 4, 2010.

The Company has not and will not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying Common Shares for as long as the PDRs

are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding year. Amecunts remaining in
excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in respect of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of
Common Shares, the Company shall grant additionai PDRs to holders in respect of such

distributions.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property (other than cash)
in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure
delivery of such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the order of
the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s ahility to pay dividends on common equity.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurred within the past three
years,

V. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the
Company that are incorporated into this Information Statement by reference. Such Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine GAAP.

As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any ofher
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying
GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Common Shares
received by the Company (or the Pledge Trustee on its behalf) shall be applied toward the
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operating expenses then due (including but noi limited to applicable taxes, fees and
maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company (the "Operating
Expenses™) for the current and preceding vear (as certified by an independent auditor). A
further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year (as certified by an
independent auditor) (the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR lIssuer) shall be distributed to Holders pro rata on the first Business Day after such
cash dividends are received by the Company.

On April 24, 2013, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, to all stockholders of record as of April 17,
2013. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 15, 2013,

On August 1, 2012, the Company approve.d a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.26 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P223.87 million to all shareholders
of record as at August 22, 2012, These were remitted to PDR holders on September 14, 2012.

On March 28, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.40 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P344.62 million to all shareholders
of record as at April 16, 2012. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 9, 2012.

On March 11, 2011, the Company approved cash distribution to PPR holders of P0.45 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P387.88 million to all shareholders
of record as at April 8, 2011. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 6, 2011.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company's key performance indicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year's operation.

Results of Operations of GMA Holdings Inc. for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011

GMA Holdings ended the year with a pre-tax loss of P139 thousand, a reversal from last year's
P811 thousand mainly due to lower revenues aggravated by higher operating expenses. In the
same manner, net loss after tax amounted to P380 thousand, a decrease of P393 theusand
from a year ago. The company realized revenues of P1.21 million, lower by P704 thousand or
37% against last year's level of P1.91 million. Interest Income plunged by P481 thousand from
P1.69 million attributable to lower interest rate which ranged from 1.03% to 2.97% against
3.10% to 4.00% in 2012. Another factor which led to lower top line performance was the
absence of conversion of PDRs fo common shares, In comparison with 4,451,200 PDRs
converted last year which generated exercise fees of P223 thousand.

The company did not declare dividends in 2013.
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Meanwhile, operating expenses hiked to P1.34 million from P1.10 million last year owing {o
higher listing fees from P560 thousand to P799 thousand as an offshoot of higher market cap.

Financial Condition. Total assets totaled P48.29 million, a tad lower from 2012's P48.42 million
due to reduction in cash and cash equivalents brought about by lower interest earned on cash
placements.

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

L

i,

Vi

Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

As of December 31, 2013, there were no known trends, demands, commitmenits,
events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2013, there were no events which may trigger a direct or
contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company.

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with uncensolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2013, there were no material commitments for capital expenditures.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

The Company's results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR
holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash
equivalents levels to meet its obligations with respect to the Company’s current and
preceding year's operation. There are no known trends, events or unceriainties that
are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net

sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's
continuing operations.

26



As of December 31, 2013, there were no significant elements of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer’'s continuing operations.

vii. Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Balance Sheet (Decamber 31, 2013 vs. December 31, 2012)

« Cash and cash equivalent decreased by P132 thousand to only P47.93 million as
a result of lower interest earned as already discussed.

e Accounts payable and accrued expenses increased to P730 thousand, 51% or
P246 thousand from previous year on account of accrued professional fees for

audit and law firm.

viil. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition '
or results of operations. ‘

INTERIM PERIODS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014

GMA Holdings ended the first quarter of 2014 with a net loss of R43 thousand, an improvement
from last year's losses of R172 thousand on account of the decline in operating expenses.

Revenues of 11286 thousand, which came solely from interest income on cash placements and
savings deposit, decreased by 12% or [J39 thousand from last year's 11325 thousand. This
quarter's interest rates on cash placements ranged from 1.16% to 1.23% as opposed to 2.55%
to 2.97% in the same quarter last year. :

Operating expenses went down by 18% to only P272 thousand from R330 thousand in 2013
mainly due to lower PSE listing fees. Listing fees of P173 thousand, dropped by 14% from B
200 thousand last year as an offshoot of lower market cap. The unexpired portion of listing fee
amounting to P518 thousand was shown under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” in
the statements of financial position.

Professional fees attributed for the services of law firm, trust fees and audit fees settled at R79
thousand, 34% less than 1120 thousand posted a year ago as a result of the reduced billing
from law firm. Taxes and licenses representing the monthly amortization local business tax
amounted to B10 thousand versus 08 thousand in 2013 due to higher tax base.

Financial Condition
Total assets amounted to B47.73 million or a tad lower from [ast year-end's 048.29 million

primarily due to lower cash and cash equivalents owing to payment of audit fees and
listing fees.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company's key performance indicators are focused on the dividends it receives fo meet
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year's operation.

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

a)

b)

Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on
the issuer's liguidity.

As of March 31, 2014, there were no known trends, demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of March 31, 2014, there were no events which may trigger a direct or contingent
financial obligation that is material to the Company.

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated enfities
or other persons created during the reporting period.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments
and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures. :

For the period January 1, 2014 to March 31, 2014, there were no commitments for capital
expenditures. :

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from
continuing operations.

The Company’s results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR holders'
expectations from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash equivalents levels
to meet its obligations with respect to the Company's current and preceding year's
operation. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that are reasonably expected
to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from
continuing operations. ‘

Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer's continuing
operations.
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As of March 31, 2014, there were no significant elements of income or loss that did not
arise from the issuer's continuing operations.

g) Causes for material changes in the Financial Statements,

Statements of Financial Position (March 31, 2014 (Unaudited) vs, December 31, 2013
{Audited}) ‘

« Cash and cash equivalents decreased by B1.31 million to R46.62 million as a result
of payment of PSE listings fees, audit fees and renewal of local taxes with Taguig
City.

e Current liabilities, on the other hand decreased by RB514 thousand to B47.49 million
due to payment of audit fees and retainers fee to law firm.

h) Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or resulis
of operations.

VI Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best practices in corporate governance.
On March 31, 2011, a Manual on Corporate Governance was submitted to the Securities and
Exchange Commission in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular 6, Series of 2009.

The Manual sets out the principles of good management and defines the specific
responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-all
governance framework.

The Manual conforms to the requirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission and covers policies, among others:

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee), (c} independent
auditors, (d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, (g) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penalties for non-compliance.

On November 6, 2012, the Board designated a Compliance Officer, Atty. Robertc O. Parel, who
at the same time holds the designation of Vice-President. The Compliance Officer is
responsible for monitering compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of
good corporate governance.

Based on the Annual Corporate Governance Manual which the Company filed on Company's
Manual filed with the Commission on June 28, 2013, there have been no deviations from the
Company’s Manual as of date.

Vll.  Financial Statemenis
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Unit 5-D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonif
MAILING ADDRESS: GIMA Netwark Center, EDSA cor. Timog Ave,, Diliman, Que

STATEMENTS OF NMANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY | .00
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '

Securities and Exchange Cornmission
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
Mandaluyong, Metro Manila

The management of GMA Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and falr presen a 10n‘of e’
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, including the- addltlonal;
components attached therein, in accordance with Ph:llpplne Financial Reportlng Standarcis This:
responsibility includes designing and implementing intemal contrals relevant to the preparatlon
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether dueto:fraud
error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policles, and making accounting: estimatas thag:
reasonable in the circumstances. -

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statemants and submn&s the same
stockholders, ;

SyClp Gorres Velayc & Co., the independent audltcrs appointed by the board of directors, Have:
examined the finansial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on. Auditlng, :..
and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon.
compietion of such examination.

ot

FELIPE L. GOZON

Chairman of the Board

15 2[]14

SUBSCRIBED AND SWDR O before me thls ____ day of Apri
me their Passport Numbers, as follows, ‘

‘ F'lak.:é of Es‘s'ue v

Name Passport Na. _
Felipe L. Gozon _ EB7372600 2013/0FA Menffa :
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. EAQ030704 . j
Felipe 8. Yalong_ EB7528245 2013/DFA Mamla
Doc. No. m
Page No.
Boak No. 7
Baries of 2014

GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

Telephone No, {632) 982-7777 loc. 8001 Fax (632) 928-5133
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

‘The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
GMA Holdings, Inc.

Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place
New Bonifacio Global City

Fort Bonifacia, Taguig City

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of GMA Holdings, Inc., which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, and a summary of significant acoounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management 's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary fo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits, We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
nssessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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COpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of GMA Holdings, Inc, as at Dcce;nber 21,2013 and 2012, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
teken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in
Note 15 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of the management of GMA Holdings, Inc. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as whole. : '

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Clairma T, Mangangey
Partner .
CPA Certificate No. 86898
SEC Accreditation No. 0779-AR-1 (Group A),
February 2, 2012, valid unti! February 1, 2015
Tax Identification No. 129-434-867
BIR Accreditation No, 08-0015998-67-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2015
PTR No. 4225188, January 2, 2014, Makati City

April 2, 2014
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANC

December 31
M’;‘:‘wd 2013 2012
0 i :‘ 351?:7; o
ASSETS e
Current Assets .
Cash and cash eguivalents (Notes 6, 12 and 3)x/ P47,929,088 248,061,553
Accounts receivable (Notes 12 and 13) 153,310 253,432
Prepaid tax and other current assets 267,488 109,106
148,290,786 P48,424,09i_
LIABILITIES AND IQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liahilities :
(Notes 7, 12 and 13) B729,558 R483,073
Due to shareholders (Notes 11, 12 and 13) 47,271,600 47,271,600
Totai Current Liabilities 48,001,158 47,754,673
Equity (Note 8)
Capital stock 100,000 100,000
Retained earnings 189,628 569,418
Total Equity 289,628 669,418
48,290,786 P48,424, 091

See accompanying Noter to Financial Statements.




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
REVENTIET ‘
Interest income (Note 6) 1,205,493 P1,686,795 81,968,591
Exercise fees (Note 3) — 222,560 -
1,205,493 1,809,355 1,968,591
EXPENSES.
Operating expenses (Note 9) 1,344,184 1,097,954 1,266,395
Interest expense and bank charges - — 300
1,344,184 1,097,954 1,266,695
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME 5
TAX {138,691} 811,401 701,89§
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX
(Mote 10)
Current 241,099 341,963 393,718
Deferred - 456,299 (380,009
241,099 798,262 13,705
NET INCOME, (LOSS) {379,790) 13,139 688,187
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME — - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LLOSRJ) {2379,790) B13,139 2688187
Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share
(Note 14) (837,98} 2131 R68.82

See accompanying Notes ta Financial Statements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Capital Retained
Stock Earnings Total
(Note 8) . (Note 8) Equity
Balance at January 1, 2013 B100,680 2569,418 P669,418
Total comprehensive loss - {379,790) (379,790)
Balance at December 31, 2013 £100,000 £189,628 P280,628
Balance at January 1, 2012 £100,000 £3,150,276 £3,250,276
Total comprehensive income — 13,138 13,139
Cash dividends - 259 a share - (2,593,997) (2,593,997)
Balance at December 31, 2012 £100,000 B569,418 P669,418
Balance at January 1, 2011 £100,000 B2,462,08% $2,562,089
Total comprehensive income - - B8R 187 688,187
Balance at December 31, 2011 £100,000 £3,150,276 £3,250,276

See poeompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Vears Ended December 31 _
2013 2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax {138,691} 2811,401 B701,896
Adjustments for:
Interest income (Note 6) (1,205,493 {1,686,795) (1,968,591)
Interest expense and bank charges ~ — 300
Operating loss before working capital changes {1,344,184) (875,354) (1,266,395)
Decreases (increases) in:
Accounts receivable 142,730 (96,560) {126,000)
Prepaid tax (98,382) (65,843) (30,429)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and -
other current liabilities 246,485 242,041 (27,599,100)
Cash flows used in operations (1,053,351) (795,756) (29,021,924)
Interest received 1,162,885 1,734,262 1,984,893
Income taxes paid (241,099) {341,963) (393,718)
Interest paid — ~ (300)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities {131,565) 566,543 (27,431,049)
CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING
ACTIVITY
Payment of cash dividends (Note 8) — (2,553,997} —
NET DECREASE 1IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (131,565) (1,997,454) (27,431,049)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ‘
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 48,001,553 50,059,007 77,450,056
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .
AT END QF YEAR £47,929,988 P48,061,553 £50,059,007

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements,



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or
otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or
otherwise dispose real and personal property of every kind and description. The registered office
address of the Company is Unit 513 Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Glaobal City,
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission {(SEC) on February 15, 2006,

The accounting and administrative functions of the Company are undertaken by GMA Netwark,
Inc. (GMA), an affiliate,

In 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipis (PDRS} which were listed and traded in
the Philippine Stock Exchange {(PSE) (see Note 5).

The Company will not engage in any business or purpose other than in connection with the
issuance of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and
holding of the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs issued. This includes
maintaining the Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status as a Philippine person
for as long as the Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA s shares by non-Philippine perscn.

No reportable segment information is presented as the Company’s limited operations are
adequately presented in the statements of comprehensive income.

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were approved and authorized for
issuance in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 2, 2014, -

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in Acconnting Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparation '
The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance w1th
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (FFRS).

The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost
basis and are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency, All values are rounded to the nearest Philippine peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended Philippine Accounting Standards ("PAS™), PFRS
and Philippine Interpretations which were adopted as at January 1, 2013.
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The adoption of the following amendments and new PFRS has no impact on the Company’s
financial statements:

n  PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabhilities (Amendments), the amendment requires an entity to disclose information about
rights of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral agresments). The new disciosures
are required for all recognized financial instruments that are offset in accordance with PAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation. These disclosures also apply to recognized financial
instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or ‘similar
agreement’, irrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32, The
amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format, unless another format is more °,
appropriate, the following minimmum quantitative information, This is presented separately for
financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:

. The gross emounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b. The amounts that are set-off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining
the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
c. The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
d, The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b} above, including:
i. Amounts related fo recogmzed financial instruments that do not meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
e. The net amount affer deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.

» PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for-all
fair value measurements, PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair
value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS. PFRS 13
defines fair value as an exit price. ‘

As a result of the guidance in PFRS 13, the Company re-assessed its policies for measuring
fair values. The Company has assessed that the application of PEFRS 13 has not materially
impacted the fair value measurements of the Company. Fair value hierarchy is provided in
Note 13,

The following new and amended PFRS, PAS and Philippine Interpretations are not appliceble to
the Company. Thus, adoption of these standards has no impact on the Company’s financial
statements:

= PFRS 1, First-time Adoption Uf ﬁ?fe;f ‘national Financial Reporting Standards - Government
Loans (Amendments)

= PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, replaces the portion of PAS 27, C'onsolzdafed
and Separate Financial Siatements

= PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, replaces PAS 31, Interasts in Joint Ventures and SIC 13,
Jointly-controiled Entities (JCEs) - Nonmonetary Coniributions by Venturers

»  PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

*  PAS 1, Preseniation of Financial Statements - Presenrafmrz of ltems of Other C’omprehenswe
Income or OCI (Amendments)



=

FAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised)

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011), es a consequence
of the new PFRS 11 and PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28, Investments in

Associates and Joint Venfuyres

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

The Adwnnual Inprovements o PFRS {2009-2011 ¢ycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
arnendments to PIFRS. The adoption of these standards has no impact on the Company’s financial

statements:

PERS 1, First-time Adaption of PFRS - Borrowing Costs, the amendment clarifies that, upon
adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowing costs in accordance with its previous
generally accepted accounting principles, may carry forward, without any adjustment, the
amount previously capitalized in its opening statement of financial position at the date of
transition.

PAS 1, Clarification of the requirement for comparative information, these amendments
clarify the requirements for comparative information that are disclosed voluntarily and those
that are mandatory due to retrospective application of an accounting policy, or retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items in the financial statements.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of servicing equipment, the
amendment clarifies that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be
recognized as praperty, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant
and equipment and sheuld be recognized as inventory if otherwise, '

PAS 32, Tax effect of distribution to holders of equily instruments, the amendment clarifies
that income taxes relating to distributions to equity holders and to transaction costs of an
equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with PAS 12, lncome Taxes,

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim financial reporting and segment informetion’
Jor total assets and liabilities, the amendment clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for a
particular reportable segment nesd to be disclosed only when the amounts are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker and there has been a material change from the
amount disclosed in the entity’s previous annual financial statements for that reportable
segmetit,

Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The Company will adopt the following new standard, interpretation, amendments and

improvements to existing standards when these become effective. Except as otherwise indicated,
the Company does not expect these chanpes to have a significant impact on its financial
statements. '

Effective in 2014

Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27), becomes effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, They provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity under.
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PFRS 10. The exception io consclidation requires investment entities to aceount for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2014, The amendment clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability fora
levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, cocurs,
For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum thresheld, the interpretation clarifies that
no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum threshoeld is reached.

PAS 32, Financial Instriments: Presentation - Qffsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities {Amendments), amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014, The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right to set-off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting
criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments affect Company’s
financial statements presentation only.

PAS 36, Impairment of Assels ~ Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(Amendments), amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2014 with earlier application permitted, provided PFRS 13 is also applied.
These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13 on the disclosures
required under PAS 36. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the recoverable
amounts for the assets or cash-generating units for which impairment loss has been recognized
or reversed during the period.

PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Contimiation of Hedge Accommting (Amendmeunts), becomes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014, These amendments provide relief from discontinuing
hedge accounting when novation of & derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets
certain criteria.

Effective in 2015

PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendment),
amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2014. The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined
benefit plans, Contributions that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted
for as reductions to current service costs if they are linked to service or as part of the i
remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to servics,
Contributions that are discretionary shall be accounted for as reductions of current service cost
upon payment of these contributions to the plans. :

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 cycle). The Annual Impfovements to PFRS
(2010-2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary amendments to the following standards:

PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition, amendment shall be
prospectively applied to shars-based payment transactions for which the grant date is on or
after July 1, 2014, The amendment revised the definitions of vesting condition and market
condition and added the definitions of performance condition and service condition to clarify
various issues.
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PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination, the amendment shall be prospectively applied to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014, The amendment clarifies that a
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument should be
classified as a financial liability or as equity in ascordance with PAS 32, Contingent
consideration that is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at fzir value through
profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of PFRS 9, Financial Istrumentis {or
PAS 39, if PFRS 9 is not yet adopted).

P¥RS B, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Recanciliation of the
Toial gf the Reportable Segments ' Assets to the Entity’s Assets, these amendments are to be
retrospectively applied for annnal periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, The
amendments require entities to disclose the judgment made by management in aggregating
two or more aperating segments. This disclosure should include a brief description of the
operating segments that have been aggregated in this way and the economie indicators that-.
have been assessed in determining that the eggregated operating segments share similar
economic characteristies, The amendments also clarify that an entity shall provide
reconciliations of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets if such
amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Short-term Receivables and Payables, the amendment
clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with na stated interest rates can be held at
invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The amendments only affect
Company’s financial statements disclosures.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Eguipment - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Depreciation, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after

July 1, 2014 after the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately
preceding annual period. The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the
revalued amount, and the asset shal! be treated in one of the following ways:

a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaiuation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b. The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel, becomes effective for
annual pericds beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively. The :
amendments clarify that an entity is a related party of the reporting entity if the said entity, or
any member of a group for which it is a part of, provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity or to the parent company of the reporting entity., The amendments also
clarify that a reporting entity that obtains management personnel services from another entity
(also referred to a8 management entity) is not required to disclose the compensation paid or |
payable by the management entity to its employees or directors, The reporting entity is -
required to disclose the amounts incurred for the key management persennel services provided
by a separate management entity.
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PAS 38, Imtangible Assets ~ Revaluation Mefhod - Proportionate Restatement of Accunndated
Amortization, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, The
amendments shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annuel periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period. The amendments clarify that, upen revaluation of an intangible asset, the carrying
amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued emount, and the asset shall be treated in
one of the following ways:

a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the esset. The accumulated amortization at the date of '
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after teking into account any accumiulated impairment losses,

b. The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated
amortization should form part of the increase or decrezse in the carrying amoun’r zceounted for
in accordance with the standard.

Anrual Improvements to PFRS (2017-2013 cyele,) The Annual Improvements to PFRS
(2011-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary amendments to the following standards;

PY¥RS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Meaning of
‘Effecrive FFRSy ', the amendment clarifies thet an entity may choose to apply either a current
standard or a new standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early application,
provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the
entity’s first PFRS financial statements,

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangemenis, becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.
The amendment clarifies that PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of a
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Porifolio Exception, becomes effective for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively. The amendment
clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial
liabilities and other contracts,

PAS 40, Investment Property, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or affer

July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively, The amendment clarifies the interrelationship
between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when classifying property &3 investment property or owner-
occupied property, The amendment stated that judgment is needed when determining whether
the acquisition of investment property is the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a
business combination within the scope of PFRS 3. This judgment is based on the gundance of
PFRS 3.

Standard with No Mandatory Effectivity

PFRS 9, Financial nstruments, as issued, reflects the first phase on the replacement of

PAS 39 and applies to the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as
defined in PAS 39, Work on impairment of financial instruments and hedge accounting s still
ongoing, with a view to replacing PAS 39 in its entirety, PFRS 9 requires all financial assets
to be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt financial asset may, if the fair valus
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option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a
business model that has the objective to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash flows
and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding, All other debt instruments.are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. All equity financial assets are
measured at fair value either through OCI or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for
trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For FVO liabilitiss, the amount
of change in the fair value of a liability that is atiributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatceh in profit or loss. All other PAS 39
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried forward
into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the
FVO,

On hedge accounting, PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge accounting model of PAS 39
with a more principles-based approach. Changes include replacing the rules-based hedge
effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on the economie relaticnship
between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the effect of credit risk on that
economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the hedged item, not
orly for financial items, but also for non-financial items, provided that the risk component is
separatsly identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time vaiue of an option, the
forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread to be excluded
from the designation of a financial instrument as the hedging instrument and accounted for as
costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge accounting. -

PFRS @ currently has no mandatory effective date, PFRS 9 may be applied before the
completion of the limited amendments to the classification and measurement mode! and
impairment methodology. The Company will not adopt the standard before the complet:on of
the limited amendments and the second phase of the project.

Interpretation with Deferred Effective Date

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, this
interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors, The interpretetion
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, |
except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS
11, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case ravenue is
recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the
construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the -
buyer on a continuous basis will also be accountsd for based on stage of completion. The
SEC and the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of
this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard
against the practices of the Philippine real estate indusiry is completed.

BH
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivelenis
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and short-—term deposits with

maturities of three months or less.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement, Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are classified
as financiai assets at Tair value through profit or loss (FVYPL), loans and receivables, held-io-
maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as eppropriate. The Company determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at FVPL.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. .

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company does not have any financial asset at FVPL,
HTM investments, AFS financial assets and derivatives designated as hedging instruments,

“Day 1" Profit or Loss. Where the transaction price {5 different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technigue
whose veriables include anly deta from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value of the financial instruments {2 “Day 1* profit or loss)
in prof tor loss unless it qualifies for recognition &s some other type of asset. In cases where data
which is not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value i 18 :
only recognized in profit or Joss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument js
derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of
recogrizing the “Day 17 profit or loss amount,

Subsequent Measurement. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methaod,
less impairment, Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or cosis that are an mtegml part of the effective interest rate, The effective
interest amortization is included in interest income in profit or Joss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in profit or loss in intersst expense for loans and in other opera‘cmg
expenses for receivables, '

Derecognition of Financinl Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicabls, & part of a financial
asset or part of & group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when;

*  The rights to receivs cash flows from the asset have expired; or
*  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an

obligation tc pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pags-through” arrangement; or
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»  Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially al] the risks and rewards of the asset, or,
(b) the Compeny has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the ussst, but has transferred control of the assst.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
imo a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the rigks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated linbility are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the Jower of the criginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial 4ssets, The Company assesses, at each reporting period, whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired, A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assefs that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial
reorganization and when observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated firture cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults. g

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. For financial assets cartied at amortized cost, the
Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Company defermines that no objective evidence of impairment exists foren .
individually assessed financial assef, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a groupof
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for )
impairment. Finencial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a coliective assessment of
impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not
yot been incurred), The present value of the sstimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financia! asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a vyariable interest rate, the discount
rats for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an ailowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of
interest income in profit or loss, Loans togsther with the associated aliowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has
been fransferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent yer, the amount of the estimated

.

impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event oceurring after the impairment Was
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recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to interest
expense in profit or loss.

Financial Lizbilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement, Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 3% are
classified as financial lizbilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company determines the
ciassification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. :

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and
borrowings, directly atiributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include accounts payable and other current liabilities
(excluding withholding tax payable) and due to sharehoiders.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company does not have any finaneial liabilities at FYPL
or derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

Subsequent Measurement. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost uging the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization i3 included in interest expense in profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the cbligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired, :

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new.
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts; and there is an intention to seftie on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements,
therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented at gross in the statements of financial
position.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting period is
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs, When,
current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides =
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction.
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For financial instruments not traded in en active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may include:

»  Using recent arm’s-length market transactions;
«  Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; or
= A discounted cash flow analysis or ether valuation models.

Eguity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs ineurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Emmings per share

Basic earnings per shars (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the year by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Company hasno -
dilutive potential commen shares outstanding, therefore, basic EPS ig the same as diluted EPS.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Company
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent.

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective
yield on the asset. '

Exercise Fees, Revenue is recognized upon conversion of PDRs to common shares.

Expenses
Expenses presented as “Operating expenses” in the statements of comprehensive income are

recognized as incurred.
Taxes

Curreni Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at
reporting period,

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not
in profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returas with respect
to situations in which applicable tax reguietions are subject ta interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income fax is pi’ovided, using the liability mathod on temporary
differences at reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting period.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits
of excess minirnum corperate income tax (MCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover
{NOLCQ), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits of excess MCIT and unused
NOLCO can be utilized, except wherz the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax zssets is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expécted o apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to be
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current
tax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxabls entity and
the same taxation authority,

[ncome tax relating to other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income
section of the statements of comprehensive income.

Value-added Tax (VAT}. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part
of “Pl‘epald tax and other current assets” or “Accounts payable and other current liabilities”
accounts in the statements of financial position.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain,

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the f” nancial statements. These are disclosed in the

notes to financial staternents unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remots. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Events after Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the
reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial staternents. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Summary of Significant Accounting Estimate and Assumption

The preparation of Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimate and
assumption that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and related notes at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these estimate and assumption could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected
in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of sstimation uncertainty at the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its estimate and assumption on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, -
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. :

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets
The Compeny’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on nondeductible temporary

differences and carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT is based on the forecasted
taxable income in the subsequent periods. This forecast is based on the Company’s future
expectations on revenue and expenses.

In 2012, the Company made a reassessment on the realizability of the deferred tax assets, Based
on the Company’s judgment, taxable income in future periods may not be sufficient against which
the deductible temporary difference and carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO,
respectively, can be utilized. This resulted to the reversal of deferrsd tax assets previously
recorded.

The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets amounting to #1.05 million and B0.72 miilion
as at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively (see Note 10).

Philippine Deposit Receipts

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued 822,115,000 PDRs relating to 822,115,000 GMA share;;
On August 21, 2007, additional 123,317,000 PDRs were issued relating to 123,317,000 GMA. -
shares. Bach PDR was issued for a total consideration of £8.50.

Each PDR grants the holders, upon payment of the exercise price and subject to certain other
conditions, the delivery of one GMA share or the sale of and delivery of the proceeds of such sale
of one GMA share, The Company remains to be the registered owner of the GMA shares covered
by the PDRs. The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA. shares.
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The GMA shares are still subject to ownership restrictions on shares of corporations engaged in
mass media and GMA may reject the transfer of shares to persons other than Philippine nationals,
The PDRs were listed in the PSE on July 30, 2007, and the same may be exercised at any time
from said date. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares received
by the Company shali be applied toward the operating expenses of the Company for the current
and preceding years. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall
be set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding years. Any amount in excess
of the aggrepate of the operating expenses paid and the operating fund for such period shall be
distributed to PDR holders pro-rata on the first business day after such cash dividends are received
by the Company. :

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an exercise price of 0.05 per share shall be paid by the PDR holders.
The exercise price is shown as “Exercise fees™ account in the statements of comprehensive
income. Exercise fees amounted to nil, 0,22 million and nil in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Immediately pricr to the closing of the PDR offering and additional issuances described above,
GMA, to which the Compeny is affiliated, transferred 945,432,000 GMA shares to the Company
in relation to which the PDRs were issued. For as long as the PDRs are not exercised, the shares
underlying the PDRs will continue to be registered in the name of and owned by the Company, -
and all rights pertaining to these shares, including voting rights, shall be exercised by the
Company. The obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA. shares on exercise of the right
contained in the PDRs are secured by the Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustes acting on
behalf of each holder of a PDR over the GMA shares. -

At any time after the PDR offering, a shareholder may, at his option and from time to timg, deliver
shares to the Company in exchange for an equal number of PDRs. The exchange is based on
prevailing traded value of GMA shares at the time of transaction with the corresponding PDR
option price.

As mentioned above, the Company retains the rights to receive the cash flows from its investment
in GMA and essumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (a “pass-through” arrangement). The “pass-through” test is met because the
Company (z) has no obligation to the PDR holders unless it collects equivalent amounts from its
investment in GMA, (b) is contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investment in
GMA other than as security to the PDR holders for the obligation to pay the cash flows, and

(c) has an obligation to remit any cash flows from the investment in GMA to the PDR holders
without material delay.

Under the “pass-through” test, the Company is desmed to have transferred substantially the risks
and rewards of its investment in GMA, Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the liabilities
related to the issuance of the PDRs are not recognized by the Company. )

The following are the details and movements of the PDRs and the underlying GMA shares for ﬂle
years ended December 31: '

PDRs MNumber of Sharas'

2013 2012 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year P7,288,833,300 B7,326,668,500 857,509,800 861,961,000
Exsreise of PDRs - {37,335,200) - {4,451,200)

Halence at end of year P7,288,833,300 R7,288,833,300 857,509,800 857,509,800
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On April 24, 2013, the Company epproved a cash distribution to PDR holders of #0.25 per shars,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to 2214.38 million to all shareholders of record
as at April 17, 2013, These were remitted to PDR. holders on May 15, 2013. '

On August 1, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of 20.26 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to £223.87 million to all shareholders of record
as at August 22, 2012, These were remitted to PDR holders on September 14, 2012,

On March 28, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of £0.40 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to B344.62 million to ali shareholders of record

as at April 16, 2012, These were remitted to PDR holders on May 9, 2012.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2013 2012
Cash on hand and in banks 21,643,366 R2.752,085
Short-term depusits 46,286,022 45,309,468

$47,929,988 P438,061,553

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates, Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term depasit rates,

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to £1.21 million, and
P1.69 miilion and B1.97 miltion in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. : o

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

, 2013 2012
Accounts payable R67,454 29,010
Accrued expenses:
Professional and trust fees 657,824 470,989
Others 4,280 2,130 -
Withholding tax payable - ‘ . 44
R729,558 P483,073

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled within
the next financial year. Accrued expensss represent accrued audit fees, retainers’ fees and
miscellaneous expenses,
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3. Equity
a, Capital Stock

The Company has 10,000 authorized, subscribed and issued common shares with £10.00
parvalue per share.

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s registration of securities with
the SEC as required by Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011):

Authorized Number
: Number ~ of Issued Issue/
Date of SEC Approvel of Shares Shares Offer Price
July 30, 2007 245,432,000 945,432,000 B850

b. Retained Earnings
The Company has no dividend declaration in 2013 and 2011.

In 2012, the Company declared 2259 per share cash dividends amounting to $2.59 million to
all stackholders of record as at May 25, 2012. This was paid on June 8, 2012.

8. Operating Expenses

2013 2012 2011
Listing fees £799,199 B560,275 P695,085
Professional fees 479,835 479,835 527,005 .
Taxes and licenses ' 33,168 33,239 27,129
Others 31,982 24,605 17,176 =

P1,344,184 £1,007,954 71,266,395

10. Income Taxes

Current Income Tax
The components of the Company’s provision for current income tax are as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Final tax interest 241,099 337,512 P393,718
MCIT - 4,451

$241,099 P341,963 R303,718
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The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed at statutory income tax rate and the
provision for income tax as shown in the statements of comprehensive income is summarized as

follows:
2013 2012 2011
Income tax computed at statutory :
income tax rate (®41,607) £243,420 £210,569
Deduction in income tax resulting
from -
Interest income from
short-term placements
and bank deposits already
subjected to final tax (120,54%) {168,526} (196,860)
Change in unrecognized deferred -
tax assets 326,965 723,368 -
Expired NOLCQO and MCIT 76,290 - -
B241,009 - P758,262 213,709
Unrecognized Deferred Tax Asseis
The components of unrecognized deferred tax assets follow:
2013 20172
NOLCO 21,045,882 P6Y7,256
MCIT 4,451 26,112
21,050,333 £723,368

As at December 31, 2013, NOLCO and MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future RCIT

due and taxable income, respectively, are as follows:

Date Paid/Incurred ~ Carryforward Benefit Up To NOLCO MCIT
December 31,2011  December 31, 2014 £1,266,695 P
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2015 875,394 4,451
December 31,2013 December 31, 2016 1,344,184 —
3,486,273 24451
The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follaw:

2013 2012

NOLCO: -
Balance at beginning of year 2,324,187 R1,448,793
Additions 1,344,184 875,304
Expired NOLCO (182,098} -
Balance at end of year $3,486,273 P2,324,187

MCIT:

Balance at beginning of year P26,112 P21,661
Additions - 4451
Expired MCIT (21,661} —
Balance zt end of year P4.451 B16,112
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11.

Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control,

Terms and Cenditions of Transactions with Related Parties

Transactions with related parties have been entered into at terms no less favorable than could have
been obtained if the transactions were entered into with unrelated parties. The Compary’s
financial statements include the following amounts resulting from the transactions with related
parties as at December 31: :

Cutstanding
Amount/Volume Receivable :
Catsgory Year of Trensactions (Payeble) Terms Conditions

Shareholders )
Portion of proceeds retained 2013 f o {847,271,600) Upon demand, Unsecured
from i{ssuance of PDRs 2512 - (47,271,600)  noninterest-bearing

Belo, Gozon, Elma Law Firm 2013 164,835 ‘ (432,824) Upon demand, Unsecured
2012 164,835 {320,989 nonintersst-bearing

The outstanding balance of “Due to Shareholders™ pertains to the option price amounting to 0.05
per PDR which was retained by the Company, as the PDR issuer, in consideration for the rights
granted under the PDRs. In accordance with the terms and conditions of the PDR offer, the
Company agrees that upon exercise of any PDRs, only the exercise price amounting £0.05 per
PDR shall be payable,

The Company’s key management personnel are employed by GMA and no part of their salaries
was allocated to the Company.

12.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main
purposs of these financial instruments includes raising financing for the Company’s operations
and managing identified financial risks. The Company has other financial assets and liabilities
such as accounts receivable, accounts payable and other current Habilities (excluding withholding
tax payable) and due to shareholders, which arise directly from its operations. Liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and credit risk are the main risks arising from the Company’s financial
instruments.

The BOD reviews and approves the Company’s objectives and policies.

Liguidity Risk. The Company is exposed to the possibility that adverse changes in the business
environment and/or its operations would result in substantially higher working capita)
requirements and subsequently pose difficulty in financing the additional working capital.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations to
meet its shori-term liquidity needs, The Company likewise regularly evaluates other financing
instruments and arrangements to broaden the Company’s range of financing sources.
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The table below summarizes the maturity profils of the Company’s financial assets used for
liquidity risk management purposes and financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments 28 at December 311 :

2013
On Demand 3 to 12 Months Total
Cash and cash equivalents £47,929,988 P 247,929,988
Accounts peyable and cther
current labilities+ B729.558 P 719,558
Due to shareholders 47,271,600 - 47,271,600
- R48,001,158 P 748,001,158
2012
(On Demand 3 to 12 Months Total
Cash and cash equivalents 248,061,553 B 48,061,553
Accounts payable and other
current Habilities* . P483,029 P £483,029
Due to shareholders 47,271,600 - 47,271,600
P47.754,629 P B47.754,629

*Exeliding withholding tax payable wiich is not considered as a finorclal fiabiiign,

Interest Rate Risk, Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to
changes in interest rates is minimal and is attributed to cash and cash equivalents.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s income before income tax from reporting
period up to next reporting period. There is no impact on the Company’s equity other than those
already affecting profit or loss,

Increase (Decrease) Effect on Income
in Basis Points ' Before Income Tax
2013 50 R239,625
(50) (239,625)
2012 50 240,283
(50) - (240,283)

Credit Risk, Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the epplication of
credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. It is the Company’s policy ta enter into
transactions with a diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of
credit risk. The Company ensures that services are made to customers with appropriate credit
history. The Company has an internal mechanism to monitor the granting of credit and
management of credit exposures. The Company has made provisions, where necessary, for
potential losses on credits extended. The Company’s exposure to eredit risk arises from default of
the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying emount of the ingtrurnents, The
Company does not require any collateral for its finencial assets.

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company using high grade and standard
grade as internal credit ratings. ‘ :
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High Grade. Pertains to a counterparty who is not expected by the Company to default in settling
its obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. This normally includes large prime financial
institutions and related parties,

Standard Grade. Other financia] assets not classified as high grade are inciuded in this category.

The Company classified its cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) and accounts
receivable as high grade financial assets as at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

As at December 31, the aging analysis of acconnts receivable is as follows:

2013 2012

Neither past due nor impaired P72.680 £253,432
Past due hut not impaired: '

31-60 days - -

61-150 days _ -

151-365 days ‘ 80,630 -

£153,310 $253,432

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value,

The Company manages its capital structure and males adjustments to it, in the light of chenges in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, payoff existing dsbts, return capital to sharsholders or issue
new shares.

No changes were made in the chjectives, policies or processes for the three years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,

The Company’s capital management is undertaken by GMA. The ca;ﬁita! includes the total equity,
which amounted 1o 20.29 million and £0.67 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

13.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

The following financial instruments have carrying values that approximate fair values due to the
relatively short-term maturity:

‘ 2013 2012
Financial Assets :
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents £47,929,988 R48,061,553

Accounts receivable 153,310 253,432
: £48,083,298 P4§,314,985
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2013 2012
Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities™ P729,558 P483,029
Due to shareholders _ 47,271,600 47,271,600
‘ PA48.001,158 P47,754,629
* Excluding withholding tex payable which is not considered ag a financial Habilin.
Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair
financial instruments by valuation technique: ;

value of

Level | - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observahie for the asset

or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from

prices); and

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or Jiability that are not based on observable market data

{(unobservable inputs).

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, there were no financial assets measured at fair value using

any valuation techniques.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers

into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements during the years ended December
2012, :

31,2013 and

14,

Basic/Diluted Earnings {Loss) Per Share Compautation

Basic/diluted EPS is computed as follows:

2013 2012 2011

Net income atiributable to equity holders (a) (379,790 £13,135 BGBER,187
Common shares issues at beginning and end

of year (b) : 10,000 10,000 10,000

Basic/diluted eamnings (loss) per shere (a/b) ®37.98) 2131 P68.82

15.

Supplementary Information Required by Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2

RR 15-2010

The Company reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in 2013:
a. Value Added Tax (VAT)

010

The Company’s purchases from VAT-registered individuals or corporations are subject to

input VAT, The VAT rateis 12%.

Balance at January |
Current year's domestic purchases for services

299,796
58,382

Totzl claims at December 31

198,178




b.

Other Taxes and Licenses

All other local and national taxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2013 consist of:

Local taxes and license fees C P32.668
Registration fees ‘ 500

733,168
Withholding Taxes

Withholding taxes paid and/or wi;thhe:id for the year ended December 31, 2(13 consist of}

Final withholding tax . P241,009
Expanded withholding tax 16,018

P257,117




SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. Tell (632} 831 0307 BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
GMA Holdings, Inc.

Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place
New Bonifacio Global City

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
GMA Holdings, Inc. as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2013, included in this Form 17-A, and have issued our report thereon dated
April 2, 2014, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as 2 whole, The schedules listed in the Index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. These schedules are
presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011), -
and are not part of the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subJected to the audztmg
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all
material respects, the information required to be set forth therein in refation to the basic financial

statements taken as & whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

) f .
Clairma T. Mangangey
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 86898
SEC Accreditation No. 0779-AR-1 {Group A),
February 2, 2012, valid until February 1, 2015
Tax Identification No. 129-434-867
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-67-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2015
PTR No. 4225188, January 2, 2014, Makati City

April 2, 2014
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE

FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
¥FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning ' B569,418
Net loss during the year closed to retained pariings . (375,750)

Dividends declaration during the period , -

Retained earnings - available for ‘
dividend declaration as at December 31, 2013 P189,628




GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

INDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013 !

. Supplemental schedules required by Annex 68-E
A. Financial assets © Attached
B. Amounts receivable from dirsctors, officers, employees, Not applicable
related parties and prineipal stockholders (other than

telated parties)

C. Amounts of receivables and payable from/to refated parties which Not applicable
are eliminated during consolidation process of financial

statements
D Intangibie assels - other asset Not applicable
E. Long-term debt . Not applicable
F. indebtedness to related parties (Long-term loans from related Mot applicable '
parties)
G. Guarantess of securities of other issuers Not applicable
H. Capital stock Attached
1}, Schedule of all the effective standards end interpretations Attached

Il Reconciliation of retained earnings available for dividend declaration Attached

V. Schedule of financial ratios Attached



GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

1. SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-E

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013

Schedule A. Financial Assets

Number of Value based on
shares or : market
principal amount  Amount shown in  quotation at end Income
Name of issulng enlity and of bonds end  the statements of of reporting  received and
association of each issue rates  Tinancial position period acerued
Cash in Banlks — B1,643,366 P £9,574
Peso Placements
Union Bank of the :
Philippines - 20,905,817 - 365,361
Unicapital, Inc. - 25,380,805 - 564,838
Banco de Oro — e — 263,720
Total Placements — £46,286,622 B £1,1985,919
Total £47,929,988 P B1,205,493
Schedule I, Capital Stock
Number of
Number of shares shares
issued and  reserved for
outstending as options,
shown under warrants, Directors,
Numbar of related statements  conversion Number of officers,
Title of shares of financial and other  shares held by and
issue authorized  position caption rights related parties employees Others

Commaon 100,000 160,000 -

7



GMA HOLDINGS, INC,
1. SCBEEDULE OF ALL THE EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013

Statements v
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
charncteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Finuncial Reporting v
(Revised) Standards

Amendments to PFRS | and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointty Controlled Entity or v
Associnte

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for _ J
First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1; Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time ' v
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperin{lation and s
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans
Amendment to PFRS 1: Meaning of Effective PFRSs* Mot Early Adopted
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Not Early Adopted

Cancellaticns

Amendments to PFRS 2; Group Cash-settled Share- 7
based Payment Transactions

Amendment toa PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting )
Condition* Not Early Adopted

PFRS3 Business Combinations v
{Revised)

Amendment to PFRS 3! Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business Cambination® Mot Early Adopted

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint
Arrangements® Not Early Adopted

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guaraniee Contracis

PTRS S Non-cutrent Agsets Held for Sale and Disgontinued v
Operations

PFRS 6 Hxplozation for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures v




Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: R

U2l

3

i

eclageification

of Financial Assels

Amendmonts to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRE 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Finantial Assels

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures ~ Offsetting
Finnneial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of

PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures Not Farly Adopted
PFRS 8 Operaling Segments

Amendments (o FFRS §; Aggregation of Operating

'| Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the Nat Early Adopted

Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets™®
PTFRS § Financiat Instruments * " Not Early Adapted

Amepdmes o RS 0 Moty B Dol | o sty At
PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Inveatment Entities™® Not Early Adopied
PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments lo PFRS 12: Investment Entitiss* Not Early Adopted
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

?;;:g?;?:nt to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and Not Early Adapted

Amendntent to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception® Not Early Adopted

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS 1T Preseniation of Financial Statements

(Revised) Amendment to PAS 11 Capital Disclosures
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financinl
Instruments and Obligations Arising or Liquidation
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of [tems of Other
Comprehensive lntome

PAS 2 Inventories

PAST Statement of Cash Flows

PAS S8 Arcounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimetes
and Errors

PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period

PAS 11 Construction Contracts




Amendment 10 PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of 7
Underlying Assets
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS [6; Revaluation Method ~
Proportionate Restaternent of Accumnulated Not Barly Adoplad
Depreciation™
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses, RV
Group Plans and Disclosures®
PAS 19 Bmployee Benefits v
{(Amended) Amendmenis o .PAS. 191 Defined Benelit Plans: Not Early Adapted
Bmployee Contribution
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of 7
Jovernment Asgistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchenge Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Cperation v
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
(Revised) ‘
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
(Revised) ‘
Amendments to PAS 24; Key Management Personnel* Nat Early Adopted
PAS 26 Accounting and Repuorting by Retirement Benefit Plana ‘ v
PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements v
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements v
(Amended) Amendmenis to PAS 27: Investment Entities* Not Edrly Adopted
PAS 28 Investments in Associates v
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
{Amended)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures v
PAS 32 Finanecial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets
. . et t
and Financinl Liabilities* Not Barly Adapted
PAS 33 Earnings per Share
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting v




Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Asse(s*

Mot Early Adopted

PAR 37

Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Caontingent
Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement ol Accumulated
Amortization® :

Mot Early Adopted

PAS 39

Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39; Transition and Initin!
Recognition of Finuncial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 3%: Crsh Flow Hedpge Accounting
of Foreeast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39; The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guaranlee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 end PFRS 7; Reciassification
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Finaneial Assets — Bffective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Ttems

Amendments to PAS 39: Novaticn of Derivatives and
Continuntion of Hedge Accounting®

Not Early Adopted

PAS 40

{nvesiment Property

Amendments to PAS 40; Clarifying the
Interrelationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 whan
Classifying Property #g [nvestment Property or Owner-
Occupied Property™®

Not Early Adepted

PAS 41

Agriculture




nterpretations .

TFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and 7
Similar Liabililies :

IFRIC 2 Members® Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar 7
Instruments :

IFRIC 4 Determining Whethey an Arrangement Conlains o 7
Lease

IFRIC 5 Righls to Interests arising from Decommissioniog, e
Restorstion and Eavironmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 6 Liabilities aristng from Fartivipating in a Speclfic v
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applving the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 s
Financlal Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 o+

TFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivetives +
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and <
FAS 3%: Embedded Derivatives _

CJIFRIC 10 Intertm Finaneial Reporting and lnpairinent v
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions v
IFRIC 12 | Service Concession Arrangements V
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v
EFRIC 14 The Limit on 8 Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum 7

Funding Requirsments and their Interaction
Amendments (o Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, 7
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 15 [ Apreements for the Construction of Real Estate® Not Early Adopted
IFRIC 16 Hedges ol & Net lnvestmend in a Foreign Operation v
IFRIC 17 | Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 Transters of Assets from Customers J
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Finaacial Liabilities with Equity v
Instruments
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface ¥
Mine*
IFRIC 21 Levies (IFRIC 21)* Not Early Adopted
81C-7 Iniroduction of the Euro v
SIC-10 Government Assisiance - No Specific Relation to 7
Ogerating Activitics
B1C-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities v
Amendment to 8IC - 12: Scope of SIC 12 e
SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary v
Contributions by Veniurers




i intr athel i

S1C-15 Operating Leases ~ Incentives

8I1C-25 Income Taxes ~ Changes in the Tax Status of on Entity 7
or its Sharcholders

SIC-27 Evaiunting the Substance of Transactions Invelving the s
Iegnl Form of a Lease

51C-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures v

81C-31. Revantue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising 7
Services

SIC-32 intangible Asscts - Web Site Costs 4

Note: Standards and interprelations tagged or “Not applicable™ are those standards which were adopted but the entity has no

significant covered transection us at and for the yeors ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012,

“Siandards and interpretations which will become gffective subsequent to December 31, 2013,




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
II. SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE

FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning P565.418
Net loss during the year closed to retained earnings (379,790)
Dividends declaration during the period ‘ -
Retained earnings - available for

dividend declaration as at December 31, 2013 £189,628




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

TV. SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2013

TFinancial Ratios Desceription 2013 2012
Current/iiquidity ratio Current assets over current Habilities 1.00 1.01
Asset to equity ratio Total asset over total equity 166.73 72.34
Debt to equity ratio Total liabilities over total equity 165.73 71.34
EBITDA margin Earnings before interest, tax and depreciation and

amortization over total revenue

.11 042



COVER SHEET

€15 T 2] of of e[ of 2[ 3| sl of

S.E.C. Registration Number

EmMA] oL pi N [e]s,] [ infc.[ T T 1T [ []
1 A T T N N N N N A O I B
T i1 rryrrrrr11rrrrr1r1rp b i
{Company's Full Name) .
Inh et [P Tlow Jelr [ [0onfe T | [ [ ||
Onle] MK ol e [y [P Jajele[ T [ | |
NTe w] Gt oo Je | _IcTi [t [y [ [T]afg Juli |g]
[ Atty. Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar | | 816-3716 !
Contact Person
Certification
| [of Independent Director | | [ |
Month Day FORM TYFE Month Day
Fiscal Year Annual Meatings
E |
Secondary License Typs, If Applicable
Dept. Requiring this Dec. Amended Articles Number/SectEon
I | | < 1 L )
Tota!l No. of Stockhoiders Domestic Farelgn

To be accomplished by SEC Personnel concerned

N O I I

File Number LCU

Y N N A RO N

Document 1.D. Cashier

- e G M MR W M MW WP ey e e e n Wi Y



1.

‘ APR 1§ AVZQ}V% £
Sesm ]

[TV e

AECHYERL BIECT TO Rz vikye OF
FOMG AMB CONTENTY

¥

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRE

L. JAIME C. LAYA, Filipino, of legal age, and with office address at Suite 7(?3
Mansion Condominium A. Amaiz Avenue; Makati City, after having been duly/sworn to
in accordance with law, do hereby declare that: ‘

1. 1 am an Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC.;

2. T am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:
Company/Organizations ‘-Position/Relat:iunship Period of Service
Philtrust Bank Chairman 2004—presenf .

| Philippine AXA Life Insurance Co., Inc, Director 20035-present
GMA Network, Inc. and GMA Holdings, Inc. Director 2007-present
Ayala Land, Inc. .| Director 2010-present
Manila Water Company, Inc. Director 2014-present
Cultural Center of the Philippines Trustee "2010-present
St. Paul University - Quezon City Trustee 2002-present
Metropolitan Museum of Manila Trustee -Ca. 2004-present
Yuchengeo Museum Trustee Ca. 2007-present
Bankers Association of the Philippines Trustee 2012-present
Heart Foundation of the Phils., Inc. Trustee Ca. 1985-present
CIBI Foundation, Inc. Trusiee 1998-present
Fundacion Santiago, Inc. Trustee 2002-present
Museo de La Salle, Inc. Trustee 2003-present
Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc. Chairman 20035-present
Society for Cujtural Enrichment, Inc. Vice Chairman 2009-present
FNEX-FoudaTon, lic. Trugiee. 2843
Avyala Foundation, Inc. Trustee 2014~
Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc. Chairman 2014-
Various NGOs Trustee Up (o about 30 years
Various family corporations Director Since the 1960s

I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC,, as provided for in Section 38

of the Securities Regulation Code and its Imple

menting Rules and Regulations.

T shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as

Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code.




5. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any
changes in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its
QCCUrtence.

Done this 11" day of April 2014 at Makati City.

AYA

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to beforel me this 11" day of April 2014 at’ City of Manlla
affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport Number
3820603 issued on May 27, 2009 by the DFA, Manila.

Doc. No. 49 Notary Public
Page No. _7/

Book No. !

Series of 2014,

Public.
ntil December 31, 2015
PTR No, 2450140
Manila December 10, 2013
TIN - 109 - 213 - 922



COVER SHEET

[ 18T 2] of of 6 o 2f s[ s[ o] |
‘ §.E.C. Registration Number

EMA] HOJL DN N 6] [T Wfe[ [ | [ [ | |
CrTrrrrr1rrrrrrrrrrt 1ot
1 I T O R N Y e O
(Company's Full. Name)
U Tt [P ] [T Jofw Jefr [ [0nJe ] 1 [ [ { |
@Inle | MKt In[i e Jy [ [Pl JafeJe [T T [ |
Nle w[ 6t Jofble [ [CJi t Iy [TJafgJuli [gl
[ Atty. Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar | | 816-3716 |
Contact Person
_ . Certification
]| | [6f Independent Director | - | 1 ]
Month Day FORM TYPE Month Day
Fiscal Year Annual Meatings
L l
Secondary License Type, If Applicable
Dept. Requiring this Doc. Amended Articles Number/Section
l | L . ]
Total No, of Stockholders Domestic Foreign

To be accomplished by SEC Personnel concerned

T T T T T T 1T 1

File Number Lcu

L It [ [ I T [ ]

Document 1.D. Cashler




E,CT,U

ie? Mo TECETOUAND s ryes

| | | AR fazmﬂ E
CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS] - N

By

RECE YL BURSACT 10 fipy igw
PO ;\;(u CORTENTY w

I, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of legal age, and with office addrégs | at
1203 Acacia Street, Damarifias Village, Makati City, after having been duly sworp t¢ in
accordance with [aw, do hereby declare that: ‘

1. | am an Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC.;

2. | am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:
Company/Organizations Position/Relationship Period of Service
First Philippine Holdings Corporation Independent Dirgctor - | 2007 - present
Metre Pagcific Investments Corporation | Independent Director 2007 - present
GMA Network, Inc. indepesndent Director 2007 - present
Manila Electric Company : independent Director 2008 - present
Robinsons Land Corperation Independent Diréctor 2008 - present
Tollways Management Corp. . Independent Director 2008 - present
Petron Corporation Independent Director 2010 - present
Bank of P Independent Director 2010 - present
Metro Pacific Tollways Corporation Independent Director 2010 - preseni
Asian Terminals independent Director 2010 - present
Metropolitan Bank Senior Adviser ' 2007 - present
Philippine Long Distance Tel. Co. Independent Director 2013 - present
Philippine Daily Inguirer Columnist 2007 - present
Jollivee Foods Corperation ' Non-executive Director 2012 - present
Deubledragon Properties Corporation Adviser 2014 - present

(For my fult bio-data, log to my personal website: cjpanganiban.com)

3. i possess all the gualifications and none of the disqualifications {o serve as an
independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.

4, | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code.

5. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any changes
in the above-mentioned infermation within five (5) days from its cccurrence.

Doddthis] 1 2¥or Aprit, 2014 at Makati City.

ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN

‘ _ Affiant
APR 11 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN fo before me this day of April 2014 at Makati City,
affiant personaily appeared before me and exhibited to me his jplomatic Passport

January 20, 2017.

Doc. No. ﬁ%
Page No.

Book No. 3”?
Series of 2014,
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CERTIFICATION

THIS 15 TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article ¥(B) of the 1987
Philippine Constitution, none of the Directors, Independent Directors and
Officers of GMA Holdings, Inc. are elected as public servants and or appointed
in any government agency, local or foreign, without authority of law.

Issued this 7th day of May 2014.

e

ROBERTO O. PAREL
Corporate Secretary/Compliance
GMA Network, Inc.



